Unapproved Approved
Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes

Monday, July 14, 2008

Attendance: Chairman Fred Kelley, Vice-Chair Rick Lazott, Seleatm&om Giffen,
Selectman Joe Duarte, Selectman Carleton Robie amdt&e/ Andria Hansen.

7:00 p.m. Chairman Kelley called the Public Meeting to order iamshediately followed
with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Departmental Reports: Highway, Police, Fire, Building, Satl Waste & any other
depts.

Highway: Road Agent Lewis read from the attached report. He rwedill start some
paving on Patten Hill Road this week. Chairman Kelleytioaad he had met with Mr.
Bishop of Candia Golf Links. Selectman Duarte statetbbked at the parking area and
didn't see any problems. Road Agent Lewis stated theg weected by the Planning
Board not to park on the street. He further stated $heuld come back to the Planning
Board to discuss the issue. Chairman Kelley asked d@heutirainage. Road Agent
Lewis explained that’s why there is no parking on thelroa

Police: Chief McGillen read from the attached report. Chief@Wlen mentioned a
couple of recent arrests in Candia in which the inldigls were connected to incidents in
Manchester. Selectman Lazott noted the departmetihgea to do a good job.

Eugene Beckman asked about parking on 55 South Road. Heckatlyseen a-semi
truek trailers unloading horses in the middle of the road. He thoitghtade for a
dangerous situation and asked if the—trutikslers could park in the field. Chief
McGillen explained to the people the horses should beadatb on the side of the road
where the farm is located. He hasn’t seen vehiclelsedann the opposite side of the
road. Chief McGillen suggested writing a letter (eitfremm the Planning Board or
Selectmen) recommending off site parking. Selectmamttanentioned parking in the
wood lot near the property. Selectman Giffen noted-¢he-guckstrailersare backing
into the road which makes for a hazardous situation,chddawrather see them park in the
road. Chief McGillen stated he would try to make cantath the owners.

Mary Girard mentioned she reported graffiti on the parteséind asked if it was taken
care of. Selectman Robie said it was taken care sd@s as it was reported.

Fire Department: Fire Chief Cartier read from the attached report. Bieadh training
hours were up.

The Board to consider Fire Chief Cartier's recommendationfor the appointment of
Christopher King as a probationary fire fighter. Fire Chief Cartier presented the
Board with a new recommendation. He stated Christoghey lives in Candia and
would make a good addition to the department. Selectmanttlantioned to allow Fire



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page&’ 2 of

Chief Cartier to appoint Christopher King as a prolvatig fire fighter. Seconded by
Selectman Duarte. All in favor. Motion carried.

Fire Chief Cartier to present resignations of Jennifer Lavgne, David Maloney, and
Joshua Cresswell and discuss leave of absences of Ray LeChard William Comier.
Fire Chief Cartier presented the Board with resignativom Jennifer Lavigne, David
Maloney, and Joshua Cresswell. Selectman Giffen medido accept the resignations of
Jennifer Lavigne, David Maloney, and Joshua Cresswéilnggret and thanked them for
their service. Seconded by Selectman Duarte. Allvuonrfa Motion carried. Fire Chief
Cartier explained he has taken a different approachaeelof absences this year. He
explained that Ray LeClerc and William Comier havekv@lated issues going on and
are unable to devote the time to the department. Tleethedssues as being a short term
problem and want to stay on the department. Fire Chaefief suggested a leave of
absence instead of resignations. This way they will maintheir place on the
department and Fire Chief Cartier will revisit the leavaix months. Selectman Duarte
stated he didn’t have a problem it. Selectman Lazotiomed to allow Fire Chief Cartier
to have a program for leave of absences for Ray ke@led William Comier which will
be handled between the Fire Chief and Selectman Du&txonded by Selectman
Giffen. All in favor. Motion carried.

Building Department: Selectman Lazott read from the attached report. digl
Inspector Hallock noted the state just adopted the 200&iEl€ode. The court house is
expected to open the week of July*21 Selectman Lazott asked about adopting a gas
piping fee. Chairman Kelley asked how much for thee f8l Hallock replied $35.00 for
the permit and $25.00 for the inspection for a total of $60.08 explained there are six
different licenses that are required for installerd@iayas piping). Bl Hallock stated they
are currently checking licenses of any persons hired tadiping. Homeowners can
still do their own work. Selectman Lazott questioned fomeowner can say he is doing
the work themselves; he can still go out and hire somewe the work. Bl Hallock
explained the homeowner will have to accept resportgibilSelectman Robie noted the
gas piping fee and inspection is including in new constmctibhe only benefit is if the
homeowner hires someone to do the gas piping and it'slara right, then the person
(installing the gas piping) is responsible. Selectmarolt asked Selectman Robie if he
thought there should be fee structure. Selectman Rtimdshe thought people should
be notified they can have gas piping inspected if theyt wahecked. New construction
is already being checked. Selectman Duarte asked whstiatleeregulations were and is
there anything the Town would have to adhere to. Bl Halloeplied the state
regulations require that anyone who does that workesigied or the homeowner does it
themselves. He knows of no specific requirements msadamonitoring. Fire Chief
Cartier stated the homeowner couldn’t do their ownggaimg anymore; it has to be done
by licensed gas fitters. Selectman Giffen stated h@enstands keeping fees to a
minimum, but if there is no other entity in the statdorcing the regulation the Board
needs to review it. He doesn’t object to a fee to cowsge for any work that might be
incurred and would go along with the Building Inspectoronemendation. Chairman
Kelley would like to know if the fees are mandatory ot.nSelectman Lazott every time
the Town puts a restriction or regulations on sometthegy accept responsibility for it



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page’ 3 of

not being done properly. Selectman Duarte would like exichvith other Towns and
see how they are doing it. Selectman Robie asked tieaBuilding Inspector is
charging now. BI Hallock replied $25.00. Selectman Laraitioned to table this
discussion until the August 95Selectmen’s meeting. Seconded by Selectman Giffen.
All in favor. Motioned carried. Bl Hallock stated he ckevith other Town’'s and see
what they are doing.

Solid Waste: Selectman Duarte read from the attached report. He riedetity
Operator Chuck Whitcher thanked the Board for the tooddecBnan Duarte stated he is
please with the way the new recycling center is coralagg.

Pond/Park: Selectman Robie mentioned the Land and Water Consertiath paper
work needed to be signed for the pond project. SelecfRmdne motioned to allow
Chairman Kelley to sign the Land and Water Consermdtiond paper work. Seconded
by Selectman Lazott. All in favor. Motion carried.iti€en Richard Zang asked if ice-
skating would be allowed on the pond. Chairman Kelleyig@pt is allowed. They
would prefer not to see hockey when there are younger amgaoaind.

Tax Collector Jane Sanders to provide Board with recommendationfor pay
increase for Deputy Tax Collector Ellie Davidson based ofavorable 90 day review.
Tax Collector Sanders stated Deputy Tax CollectoreHllavidson continues to do a
wonderful job. Selectman Giffen motioned to provide Deptliax Collector Ellie
Davidson with a 25-cent hourly increase effective on 07/06788ed on a favorable 90
day review, new rate to be $11.25. Seconded by Chairman Kellein favor. Motion
carried.

Conservation Commission Chair Fowler to discuss possible espditure from the
conservation fund. Chairman Kelley stated he has received a request tosdisbe
Sanders property map 406 lot 046 and the Sieminski property@tfots 038, 059-2,
and 060. The Conservation Commission is proposing taheseonservation fund to
purchase a portion of the development rights. ChairKelley told CC Chair Fowler
they could only discuss the Sanders property, becausgliie gtovide the Board with
information on the Sieminski property. CC Chair Fovgersented the Board with maps.
CC Chair Fowler introduced Phil Auger who is a land ancewabnservation specialist
for UNH Cooperative Extension. Mr. Auger explained hd Wwarked with the Sanders
when he was a county forester. He further explaihisdarea is a wonderful forest. The
Town would be doing a good thing for the Sanders by puttiadaihd in an easement.
CC Chair Fowler stated the trust department at thee@itBank has been handling this
property since Mrs. Sanders died. The daughters have mditathe trust department
they want to see this land conserved. They have lisiedand with Parade Properties
and have found people who are interested in buying itcasiservation buyer. The trust
department felt the best way to conserve this land was fib mtior to it being sold to
someone else. The reason being who ever bought tdenigght not follow through
(with the Sanders wishes) and not put a conservationmesmseon the property.
However, the trust department wants to do the begtde to provide some funds to the
| daughters. They are not in the position to donate aheflangd-valuedat-$200-000



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page&’4 of

development rights CC Chair Fowler explained he would like the Townnaintain
some kind of interest in the property. They would purclitage$100,000 and in return
they get an executory interest in the conservatioerneast. The Town then has the
responsibility to find another easement holder. ThevT will also have a say in the
language of the easement and the public will have atoe8® property through the
trails. CC Chair Fowler stated they were looking fae Boards approval to go ahead and
have an executory interest in this piece of propertyt (thkh have an easement on it).
Chairman Kelley asked how many acres the easement Wweyldt on. CC Chair Fowler
replied 40 acres. He further explained they are reseriengdght to have one house built
on Healy Road, a 3 acre piece plus some acreage atouddléctman Lazott stated this
is not a good time to spend money on developmental rightsit’s not a great piece of
land. He further stated he felt the money would H¢ebespent elsewhere. Chairman
Kelley asked if the Town was the only one putting moneyheneasement (not Bear
Paw). CC Chair Fowler stated just the Town of Candalectman Lazott believed if Dr.
and Mrs. Sanders were alive today they would have givermand to the Town or put a
deed restriction on it. Selectman Robie asked wheretter half would come from.
CC Chair Fowler replied the daughters would donate therdtalf. Selectman Robie
asked how much the 40 acres of back land was worth. K€ Eowler stated the
development rights are worth $200,000, determined by Stan Mgp=isal Services out
of Portsmouth. Selectman Robie stated that moneyd doeilbetter used, especially in
these though economic times. CC Chair Fowler expdathey have the money in the
conservation fund and if someone comes along who viarkiargain sale they are ready
to talk to them about it. Selectman Duarte noted this stquas written on July"®and
felt there wasn’t enough time to review the request.atted something like this should
be posted on the website and the Board should have at3@adays before they
contemplate taking a vote on it. Jeanie Menard odd®@aProperties explained there was
enough frontage to create three house lots. Thereuanently no offers on the property;
buyers have been waiting in the wings to see what thengnt language is. She added
if the Town is serious about conserving land, than the to conserve is when there isn't
pressure at the door. If this is a piece of propertyttt@Conservation Committee would
like to conserve, then consider doing it now and donit watil the market is too brisk.
Mr. Auger agreed with Ms. Menard and added that a lohefland trusts don’'t have
large funds that support these kinds of projects. 3t o happens the Town’'s
conservation fund is ideally matched for this. RicharehgZasked how much road
frontage they would want because that would be import&®&€. Chair Fowler all he
heard was three acres, but didn't know how much roautdge there would be. Mr.
Zang asked if there would be enough frontage to create thew lots. Mr. Auger
explained there would be enough frontage for three nesvplols a 50 foot right away
beyond that. CC Chair Fowler stated he spoken withrtise officer recently, who spoke
with the Sander’s daughters, and they agreed if the Tisvaontributing funds to pay
50% then public access would be allowed on the propertg.edbement language would
state that. Carla Penfield asked if the Conservatmmr@ission would be using money
they already have. CC Chair Fowler stated that vaaiect. Carla Penfield stated it
would not upset next year’s taxes at all if they haeerttoney. She then asked if the
Conservation Commission spends the $100,000, would they aimaitiie $500,000
balance. CC Chair Fowler stated they would not govbe&i500,000. There was some




Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page&’5 of

discussion about easements and developmental rightsn Gole asked what type of
development would take place. CC Chair Fowler stateten Jeanie Menard stated
when an appraiser comes and looks at a property theynhotook at frontage, but the
whole parcel to see if a developer would buy the larolitnl houses. She thought there
was enough land (50 feet) to put a road in. ChairmareKsliated you need 60 feet to
put a road in. Jeanie Menard stated the land is highly asage in terms of
topography; lay of the land, minimal wetlands, etc. Muger explained there was a
development scenario drawn up for the property as partnofearlier appraisal.
Selectman Duarte motioned to table this matter until August 28" Selectmen’s
meeting, so the Board is more prepared to make a deosiin Seconded by Selectman
Robie. Chairman Kelley, Selectman Robie, Selectmarott, and Selectman Duarte
were in favor. Selectman Giffen was opposed. Matmmied on a vote of 4 to 1. Todd
Allan suggested posting the information of the potentia¢ ®al the website for the
citizen’s of the Town. Selectman Lazott stated evbaught the Conservation
Commission has the money in their account; its stibager’'s money and it should go
back to the voters for their decision. Tom DiMagsiated with the potential land being
available to the Conservation Commission, it's a gxrivay for the Town to expand
their recreational area. Judi Lindsay noted the ntgjofithe money in the conservation
fund is coming from developers who take land out of curese and pay the tax and the
Town’s people are only benefiting. Selectman Lazott répdigrrent use was put in to
repay the taxpayer for what the Town absorbs fomatig people to keep their land in
current use. The money that comes from current uselesigned by the legislature for
the first eighteen years, to go into the general foraffset the tax rate.

Restoration Bond for Wildcat Land Development: Selectman Duarte explained Mr.
Danais sold lot 410 map 137-1 and the new owner, Wildcat Davelopment, has to go
back to the Planning Board for acceptance of the bondect®®n Duarte asked for
permission to act on behalf of the Selectmen atuhelB" Planning Board meeting (to
approve the bond amount). He noted if the developer dvawait until the next
Selectmen’s meeting it will hold him up 2 weeks. SelectiRabie motioned to let
Selectman Duarte act on behalf of the Board of Smleetat the July #6Planning Board
meeting to approve Wildcat's restoration bond. Secon8ddgctman Lazott. Chairman
Kelley, Selectman Robie, and Selectman Lazott wefavior. Selectman Giffen was not
present at the time of the motion. Motion carried.

Board to review with department heads current expenditure and discuss status of
2008 budget to date.

Highway: Road Agent Lewis explained the condition of his budget alasveather
related. Chairman Kelley asked Road Agent Lewis whapriuiected amount was to get
him through the rest of the year. Road Agent Lewidieéphat it depended on the
weather. If it doesn’t snow much in December the budgébwifine. If he plows three
times a week (in December), it could be $60,000. There was discussion on fuel and
rates. He stated worst-case $50,000 to $60,000. Road Agentddeleid he anticipated
the price of salt going up. Selectman Giffen statedbitld be prudent for the Board to
allow for the worst-case scenario based on extremativer events over the past few
years. Selectman Lazott suggested sending out a menfiotite department heads to



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page&’6 of

tighten up on their spendingSolid Waste: Selectman Giffen noted burning is cheaper
than land filling. The recycling rate has improved. otiks like there is a lot of money
unspent, but once the incinerator is shut down the pfidandfill will go up. Police
Department: Chief McGillen stated his budget is looking pretty gooc Hdlieved his
cruiser maintenance line would be over, due to some eixperepairs. The fuel line is
looking good. Fire Department: Fire Chief Cartier noted he had about a month and a
half left in his fuel budget and is trying to be frugal. ideconcerned with the winter
coming and more fire related calls (with people burning woo&electman Duarte
suggested mailing out a safety memo. Selectman Giffen anedtishuffling his budget
around, due to the fuel cost and heating the building. Ginief Cartier noted the Fire
Department still receives generous donatioBgilding Department: Bl Hallock stated
he’s running right on line. He’s holding off on office stipp and other things.
Cemetery: Mr. Anderson stated he doesn’t start using his budgetramiApril. When
the fall comes it will start to diminishHealth/Welfare: Health and Welfare Officer Hall
stated she has 38% left and will be over budget by thettite year. The majority of
the money is going to people in need of medicine, oil/prepant, and electric bills. H
& W Officer Hall stated she would take out her mileagd do it with her taxes. She
has enough protective clothing and can get them through erogrgemagement if she
needs it. H & W Officer Hall's biggest concern is ftiheect assistance line. The food
pantry is not a problem. Chairman Kelley asked H & fficer Hall what her largest
expense would be. H & W Officer Hall replied assistaffiar oil and propane. She
added she was going to re-write the way she pays bilés @s the amount that she pays.
She was only going to pay the current due on bills (i.etradebills). H & W Officer
stated she was going to check with other towns, tdeeethey are paying. Selectman
Lazott noted he wouldn't be surprise if direct assistameehed $75,000. Fire Chief
Cartier asked if anyone was getting state fuel assistadc® W Officer Hall explained
she sends people to the Rockingham Community Acti@hifathey don’t qualify they
come back to the Town. H & W Officer Hall thanked Balléck for all of his recent
help.

Selectman Giffen suggested sending a memo to all the depdrheads to cut costs and
come up with ideas to economize. He added they should gpnvéh a total amount of
$60,000 for the remainder of the year. Selectman Giffetiomed to table the review of
the 2008 budget until the August ™ Belectmen’s meeting. Seconded by Chairman
Kelley. Allin favor. Motion carried.

Board to discuss two abatement requests receivedl'he Board decided to table the
abatement requests until the July"ZBelectmen’s meeting.

Approval of Previous Minutes: Public meeting minutes of 6/23/08.Selectman Robie
motioned to approve the public minutes of 6/23/08 as preseB8&tbnded by Selectman
Giffen. All in favor. Motion carried.



Candia Selectmen’s Public Meeting Minutes of 7/14/08 Page’7 of

Any Other Business:

Signing change of work order and authorization: Chairman Kelley announced he
recently authorized and signed a change of work ordehéof tansfer Station.

Betsy Kruse to discuss Brownfield: Betsy Kruse presented the Board with information
on Brownfield sites with potential contamination. Simed Fire Chief Cartier has been
working on this project as well.

Selectman Giffen motioned to adjourn at 9:30 a.m. Skmbby Selectman Duarte. All
in favor. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Andria Hansen, Recording Secretary



